
UNION
* >.r UUTLfR ● WORTHINCTOH SPRINGS ● .IPQPO ● PALESTINE ● PROVIOENCL

Union County Board of County Commissioners
15 Northeast 1'* Street. Lake Butler. FL 52054 ● Phone: 586-496-4241 ● Fax:586-496-4810

AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING

JUNE 16, 2025

6:00 P.M.

NOTE: If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he or

she wiil need a record for the proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim record is made

1. Chairman DobbsMeeting Called to Order.

Invocation and Pledge...

Adoption of the Agenda

Public Comments

2. Commissioner McNeal

3.

4.

5. Approval of Consent Agenda
● Finance Report

● Minutes: May 15, 2025 Public Hearing, May 19, 2025 Regular Meeting, June 2, 2025 Business Meeting
June 2, 2025 Planning & Zoning Public Hearing and June 2, 2025 Public Hearing

● Budget Amendment

Budget Request from Meridian Healthcare	

Consideration to Award 92''‘’ St./146'^ Ln/52nd Ct Project	

Consideration of Resolution 2025-06, Combining Lots 6 &7of New River Estates	

Consideration to Appoint a Member to the (CoC) North Central Florida Homeless Continuum of
Care	

Consideration of V.S. Robinson Construction Contract for Courthouse Security Upgrades	

Report from County Coordinator, Jimmy Williams and Reports from Department Heads
Lamar Griffis, Solid Waste Director

Chris Griffis, Road Department Director

Priti McNutt, Public Library Director
Brent Allen, EMS Director

Jim DeValerio, Extension Office Director

6. ..Ashley Brooks

Jimmy Williams

.Attorney Wade

7.

8.

9.

.Jimmy Williams

.Jimmy Williams10.

11.

12. Clerk RhoadesReport Kellie Hendricks Rhoades, Clerk of Courts and Comptroller.

Report from Russell A. Wade III, County Attorney	

Report from County Commissioners
Donna Jackson, District 1

Channing Dobbs, District 2
Melissa McNeal, District 3

Mac Johns, District 4

Willie Croft, District 5

Adjournment

13. Attorney Wade

14.

15.

BOARD MEMBERS:

DONNA lACKSON, District I ● CHANNING DOBBS, Di.stricI 2 ● MELISSA McNFAL, Di.sfrict.5 ● MAC lOHNS, Di.stricl4 ●WILLIECROFT. Districts

RUSSELL WADE

Cnunlv Altorn<’\’

KEIJ..IE HENDRICKS RHOADFJ;

Clerk ol Cinirt/Complrollor



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

UNION COUNTY, FLORIDA

CONSENT AGENDA

JUNE 16, 2025

1. Minutes:

● May 15, 2025 Public Hearing

● May 19, 2025 Regular Meeting

● June 2, 2025 Regular Business Meeting

● June 2, 2025 Planning & Zoning Public Hearing

● June 2, 2025 Public Hearing

2. Finance Report:

● Checks submitted for approval of payment

● Additional bills submitted after processing



























































































































BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

UNION COUNTY, FLORIDA

PUBLIC HEARING

MAY 15, 2025

NOTE: If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing,

he or she will need a record of the proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim record is made.

Channing Dobbs, Chair

Reagan E. Robinson, Deputy Clerk

Commissioner Mac Johns; Commissioner Donna Jackson; Commissioner Melissa McNeal; James

Williams, County Coordinator; Russell A. Wade 111, County Attorney

PRESIDING:

RECORDING:

ATTENDING:

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER

Chairman Dobbs called the meeting to order at 9:03 A.M.

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE

Commissioner Jackson offered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Hearing no requests to speak, Chair Dobbs closed the floor to public comments.

CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE 25-02. DECLARING AN EXTENSION ON THE MORATORIUM

Attorney Wade read Ordinance 25-02 and noted that it is before the Board for final adoption. He went on to share

possible changes to the LDRs that he and Mr. Williams, along with the North Florida Regional Planning Council, came

up with, including more specific land use classifications and improved standards. Commissioner Jackson and

Commissioner McNeal then entered into discussion regarding the use of RVs to more easily care for elderly family

members. CommissionerJackson shared that surroundingcounties set a six-month special exception permit in place

for these situations.AttorneyWade explainedthe legislationthat is expected to be considered in the upcoming session.

The Board then entered into discussion regarding the issues with RVs, fees and provisions that could be put in place to

resolve said issues. Mr. Williams suggested imposing a checklist that requires sites to meet a set of parameters.

CommissionerJackson stated the cost of these parks are harmful to the County the cost of these parks stand to cause

financial strain on the County. Attorney Wade explained that the new requirements would create enough infrastructure

that it can be taxed. Discussionensued regardingspecialassessments. Commissioner Jackson stated that she would like

to have a workshopto considerresolutionsfurther.

PUBLIC COMMENTS IN FAVOR OF AND OPPOSED TO;

There were no public comments in favor of or opposed to Ordinance 25-02.

ACTION BY THE BOARD

Commissioner Jackson moved to adopt Ordinance 25-02. Commissioner McNeal seconded the motion, and it

passed unanimously.

Seeing no further business, Chair Dobbs adjourned the meeting by general consent at 9:33 A.M.

ATTEST:APPROVED:

Kellie Hendricks Rhoades, Clerk of CourtsChanning Dobbs, Chairman

Page 1 of 1



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

UNION COUNTY, FLORIDA

REGULAR MEETING

MAY 19, 2025

NOTE: If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing,

he or she will need a record of the proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim record is made.

Channing Dobbs, Chair

Reagan E. Robinson, Deputy Clerk

Commissioner Mac Johns; Commissioner Donna Jackson; Commissioner Melissa McNeal;

Commissioner Willie Croft; Kellie Hendricks Rhoades, Clerk of Courts & Comptroller; James

Williams, County Coordinator

PRESIDING:

RECORDING:

ATTENDING:

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER

Chairman Dobbs called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M.

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE

Chair Dobbs offered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Hearing no requests to speak. Chair Dobbs closed the floor to public comments.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA

Chair Dobbs read the list of minutes to be considered. Clerk Rhoades presented Budget Amendment 25-09 and

Resolution BA 25-04. Commissioner Jackson then asked about the repair status of the grounds at O.J. Phillips

Recreation Complex. Mr. Williams stated that repairs were in progress. Commissioner Jackson then noted she

didn't see any additional bills. Clerk Rhoades shared that with Directors submitting weekly bills, along with the

implementation of the Regular Business Meetings, they have been able to get rid of additional bills completely.

Commissioner Jackson moved to adopt the Consent Agenda, including minutes from the April 21, 2025 Regular

Meeting, May 5, 2025 Regular Business Meeting, May 5, 2025 Planning & Zoning Public Hearing, and May 5,

2025 Special Meeting, as well as the Finance Report, Budget Amendment 25-04 and Resolution BA 25-09.

Commissioner Johns seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously.

Clerk Rhoades noted that she worked with Mr. Jim DeValerio, UF/IFAS County Extension Director, to amend their

budget by $2,584 to cover the cost of hiring a summer intern, reducing 4-H Awards. Commissioner Jackson asked

if a motion needed to be made on the matter. Clerk Rhoades explained that one did not because the Board had

previously voted to delegate the responsibility of line item budget changes to the Department Head and the Clerk.

Commissioner Jackson stated that she would like to see that decision moved back to the Board. Commissioner

Jackson moved that responsibility for all budget decisions be with the Board. Commissioner McNeal seconded

the motion, and it passed unanimously.

CommissionerJackson moved to approve BudgetAmendment25-08, moving funding in the budget to cover the

cost of a summer intern. Commissioner McNeal seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously.

DISCUSSION OF COUNTY/CITY PROPERTY

Mrs. Kim Hayes, City Manager, shared that she had been approached by community members wanting a skate

park and pickle ball court. She stated that the City of Lake Butler is looking to sell the lot next to B-Squared and

Page 1 of 3



Regular Meeting

May 19, 2025

buy the County's property next to Jackson Building Supply to put these recreational activities on. Commissioner

Jackson responded, saying that she is not interested in selling the property because it is so utilized by the County.

She also shared that she would like to see a farmers market return to that location one day. Mrs. Hayes noted

that she would like to incorporate festivals and markets on the grounds. Commissioner McNeal stated that she

would like to look more into it. Commissioner Jackson shared that she likes the idea of a place for community

involvement but does not want to sell that piece of property. Chair Dobbs suggested an alternative location

adjacent to OJ Phillips. Commissioner Johns stated that he would like to see plans and what the City would be

offering. Discussion ensued regarding alternative locations and grants, as well as feasibility.

CONSIDERATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS. UNION COUNTY COURTHOUSE RESTORATION GRANT

Mr. Williams informed the Board that the wrong documentation was originally sent and accepted by the Board,

but that this corrected agreement changes the length of time before the Courthouse could possibly be sold from

10 to 15 years. Commissioner Johns moved to approve the restrictive covenants as presented. Commissioner

Croft seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously.

CONSIDERATIONOF 911 GRANT FOR ANNUAL MAINTENANCEAGREEMENTS $91.460.43

Mr. Williams explained that this is an annual grant agreement for the maintenance of 911 equipment.

Commissioner Croft moved to accept the annual maintenance agreement. Commissioner Johns seconded the

motion, and it passed unanimously.

CONSIDERATION OF 911 GRANT FOR NEW 911 SYSTEM $182.160.23

Mr. Williams stated that this grant has already been awarded, and action is needed to accept the agreement.

Commissioner Johns moved to accept the grant funding. Commissioner Croft seconded the motion, and it

passed unanimously.

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 2025-04. JOINT RESOLUTION WITH TOWN OF WORTHINGTON SPRINGS

AUTHORIZING AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR MOSQUITO SPRAYING SERVICES

Mr. Williams shared that he was contacted by Worthington Springs about Mosquito Control spraying the city. He

noted that Mr. LamarGriffis, Solid Waste Director, considered the route, labor and supplies and came to an agreed

upon amount of $3,500 to be evaluated for renewal annually. He then stated that he worked with Attorney Wade

to draft an interlocal agreement and presented it to the Board, Commissioner Jackson posed questions regarding

the process and the agreement. Mr. Griffis and Mr. Williams responded, stating that it is not out of their way to

do and will be beneficial for the Mosquito Control program. Clerk Rhoades asked when they will be paid for the

work and Mr. Williams informed her that it will be paid at the beginning of the spraying season. Commissioner

Johns moved to adopt Resolution 2025-04. Commissioner McNeal seconded the motion, and it passed

unanimously.

REPORT FROM COUNTY CQORIDNATOR. JIMMY WILLIAMS AND REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS

Mr. Williams presented the addendum agenda. Commissioner McNeal moved to advertise for the construction

bid of the 238-N to 229 Resurfacing Project. Commissioner Jackson seconded the motion, and it passed

unanimously.

Commissioner Croft then moved that CSI provide CEI services for the 238-N Project. Commissioner Johns

seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously.

Page 2 of 3



Regular Meeting

May 19, 2025

Mr. Williams provided updates on the Historic Preservation Grant, the Employee Appreciation Luncheon and the

92"'^ Project, as well as interviews for the EMS Director Position.

Mr. Lamar Griffis stated that everything is good in the Solid Waste Department.

Mr. Chris Griffis, Road Superintendent, shared that everything is going great.

Mrs. Priti McNutt, Mary C. Brown Public Library Director, stated that their summer programs are going great.

Mr. DeValerio shared that the St. Jude Swine Show raised approximately $10,000 and that Project Grad was a

success, adding that both organizations cleaned up after themselves properly. He then proceeded to

compliment the success of Mrs. Megan Daniel, sharing that she received four awards and presented three

professional presentations at the UF/IFAS Annual Meeting, and that she obtained her master's degree.

CommissionerJohns stated that they are doing a fantasticjob. Commissioner Jackson offered that she is

thankful to have Mrs. Daniel, Mr. DeValerio and Mrs. Toney.

REPORT FROM KELLIE HENDRICKS RHOADES. CPA, CLERK OF COURTS AND COMPTROLLER

Clerk Rhoades provided updates on the funding received from FEMA from the previous hurricanes that impacted

the County. She then noted that all budget forms had been emailed and asked that all Directors have their

preliminary budgets to her by June 1.

REPORT FROM COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Commissioner Jackson shared how much she appreciates the Directors and staff. She then stated that she would

like to formally adopt the agenda. Clerk Rhoades suggested adopting the agenda immediately after the prayer and

pledge upon calling the meeting to order, before Public Comments, sharing that procedure is similar to how the

Clerk's Association conducts meetings. Commissioner Jackson moved to add an item to agendas to adopt the

agenda, and addendum if present, to take place before Public Comments. Commissioner Croft seconded the

motion, and it passed unanimously.

Chair Dobbs congratulated Mrs. Daniel on her accomplishments. He then thanked Sheriff Whitehead and Mr. Allen

Parrish for assisting with the interviews for the EMS Director position, and Department Heads and their staffs.

Commissioner McNeal stated that she had spoken to Mr. Lamar Griffis about how the County has outgrown some

of the collection sites. She believes that the County is losing money and that solutions must be found. Discussion

ensued regarding solutions to the issue. Commissioner Johns requested an evaluation of a second dumpsite in

between Worthington Springs and Providence. Mr. Williams stated that he was working on obtaining an analysis.

Commissioner Johns shared a letter of complaint about road damage caused by truck drivers in a residential area.

He then provided updates on the Providence Fire Station and parks, as well as grants and donations that allowed

for updates to the Recreation Complex.

CommissionerCroft thanked all the County'semployees.Seeing no further business, Chair Dobbs adjourned the

meeting by general consent at 7:07 P.M.

ATTEST:APPROVED:

Kellie Hendricks Rhoades, Clerk of CourtsChanning Dobbs, Chairman

Page 3 of 3



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

UNION COUNTY, FLORIDA

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING

JUNE 2, 2025

NOTE: If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing,

he or she will need a record of the proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim record is made.

Channing Dobbs, Chair

Reagan E. Robinson, Deputy Clerk

Commissioner Mac Johns; Commissioner Donna Jackson; Commissioner Melissa McNeal;

Commissioner Willie Croft; James Williams, County Coordinator; Russell A. Wade, County Attorney;

Pamela Woodington, Finance Director

PRESIDING:

RECORDING:

ATTENDING:

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER

Chairman Dobbs called the meeting to order at 5:09 P.M.

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

Commissioner Jackson moved to adopt the agenda. Commissioner Croft seconded the motion, and it passed

unanimously.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Hearing no requests to speak. Chair Dobbs closed the floor to public comments.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCE REPORT

Commissioner Jackson moved to adopt the Finance Report. Commissioner McNeal seconded the motion, and It

passed unanimously.

REAL ESTATE LEASE FOR UNION COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

Mr. Williams explained it is a long standing lease agreement for $694 monthly. Commissioner Jackson inquired

about the term of the lease, which seems unclear. Discussion ensued regarding the renewal terms clause and the

inclusion of an increase. Commissioner McNeal moved to accept the lease agreement. Commissioner Croft

seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously.

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT OF $823.805 FOR 92^^ STREET/146^^ LANE/152^p COURT & RESOLUTION 2025-05

Mr. Williams informed the Board that this is the additional funding for the SCRAP project. Commissioner Johns

stated that Mr. Williams did an incredible job in obtaining this funding. Commissioner Johns moved to accept the

supplemental agreement and Resolution 2025-05. Commissioner McNeal seconded the motion, and It passed

unanimously.

DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION OF EMS POSTION

Mr. Williams explained that the EMS Hiring Committee interviewed candidates and selected their top two

candidates, whom are present in the meeting to answer any of the Board's questions. Both Mr. Brent Allen and

Mr. Andrew Metzler introduced themselves, sharing their backgrounds, EMS experiences and goals for their

futures. Chair Dobbs asked them each a question before noting the level of experience across all interviewees. He

thanked everyone who sat in on the committee, especially Mr. Allen Parrish, as well as Sheriff Whitehead and Mr.

Allen Parrish. Commissioner Johns shared with the candidates that the Hiring Committee was created in order to

select the best candidate for the position and that the Board entrusted them to do so. With that in mind.

Page 1 of 2



Regular Business Meeting

June 1, 2025

Commissioner Johns moved to hire the committee's first pick, Mr. Brent Allen, as the new EMS Director If he

accepts the negotiated salary. Commissioner Jackson seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously.

The Board offered Mr. Allen words of wisdom and support, as well as their aspirations for EMS and Fire.

Commissioner Jackson clarified that the committee's recommendation was to select Mr. Metzler to serve in a

second-in-command position. She offered her thoughts that that should be left to the director and Commissioner

Johns agreed.

CONSIDERATION OF COURTHOUSE SECURITY BIDS

Mr. Williams stated that they had two bids that came in, both in compliance. He shared that C.C. Borden came in

at $799,900 and V.S. Robinson Contracting came in at $388,000. He recommended that the Board accept the low

bid. Commissioner Jackson inquired about how much has been budgeted forthis project. Mrs. Woodington stated

that she would send those numbers to Commissioner Jackson the following day. Commissioner Johns moved to

accept V.S. Robinson Contracting's bid. Commissioner Croft seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously.

REPORT FROM KELLIE HENDRICKS RHOADES. CPA, CLERK OF COURTS AND COMPTROLLER

Clerk Rhoades was absent. Mrs. Woodington thanked the Board for holding Regular Meetings bi-monthly.

REPORT FROM COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

The Commissioners provided a few updates on happenings around the County and expressed their gratitude for

the employees and excitement for the future of Union County.

Seeing no further business. Chair Dobbs adjourned the meeting by general consent at 5:42 P.M.

ATTEST:APPROVED:

Kellie Hendricks Rhoades, Clerk of CourtsChanning Dobbs, Chairman

Page 2 of 2



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

UNION COUNTY, FLORIDA

SERVING AS THE PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD

PUBLIC HEARING

JUNE 2, 2025

NOTE: If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing,

he or she will need a record of the proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim record is made.

Channing Dobbs, Chair

RECORDING: Reagan E. Robinson, Deputy Clerk

ATTENDING: Commissioner Mac Johns; Commissioner Donna Jackson; Commissioner Melissa McNeai;

Commissioner Willie Croft; James Williams, County Coordinator; Russell A. Wade III, County

Attorney; Pamela Woodington, Finance Director

PRESIDING:

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER

Chairman Dobbs called the meeting to order at 4:20 P.M.

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE

Chair Dobbs offered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

Commissioner Johns moved to adopt the agenda for the current meeting. Commissioner Jackson seconded the

motion, and it passed unanimously.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Chair Dobbs called for public comments. Hearing no requests to speak. Chair Dobbs closed the floor to public

comments.

CONSIDERATION OF AN APPLICATION BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS. TO AMEND THE TEXT OF

THE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS (LDR) BY AMENDING SECTION 4.15. 1. ENTITLED ^1LW" INDUSTRIAL.

LIGHT AND WAREHOUSING. DISTRICTS AND INTENT AND SECTION 4.16.1. ENTITLED INDUSTRIAL. DISTRICTS

AND INTENT TO DELETE THE LOCATION REQUIREMENT THAT SUCH DISTRICTS BE LOCATED WITHIN A

DESIGNATED URBAN DEVELOPMENT AREA AND RESOLUTION NO. LDR 25-01

Attorney Wade read Ordinance 25-03 and explained that it is an amendment to the land development regulations

that will delete the location requirement for industrial districts to be located within a half-mile of city limits. Chair

Dobbs offered that it will, by application, improve the County's tax base and number of small businesses.

Discussion ensued regarding the purpose and characteristics of DUDA, and its impacts on the County. Attorney

Wade explained that if the Commissioners would rather keep the industrial properties in the radius, they can vote

rather to adhere to the land developmentregulationsinstead of the Comprehensive Plan. Commissioner Jackson

then stated that the question is, at the end of the day, what would we like to see next to us? She expressed that

she would need time to ponder this question with the citizens in mind. Attorney Wade clarified that even if they

pass this amendment, it would not restrict the Board's ability to deny applications.

Commissioner McNeal noted that while growth isn't necessarily wanted, it is taking place. She expressed that she

would like to this growth be done in a smart manner, in order to increase the County's revenue while preserving

the County's rural atmosphere. Commissioner Jackson reiterated that there are a great deal of what ifs and that

she does not feel that she can make an informed decision at this time. Discussion ensued regarding the application

Page 1 of 2



Planning and Zoning Board Public Hearing
June 2, 2025

process and the implications of the amendment. Commissioner Jackson inquired how the surrounding counties

regulate this scenario. Commissioner McNeal explained that Mr. Scott Koons stated that this change made sense

in Union County because of how few and small its municipalities are. Discussion ensued regarding the difference

between types of amendments related to these regulations.

PUBLIC COMMENTS IN FAVOR OF:

There were no public comments in favor of Ordinance 25-03.

PUBLIC COMMENTS OPPOSED TO:

There were no public comments opposed to Ordinance 25-03.

ACTION BY THE BOARD

Commissioner Johns shared that he is as antigrowth as they come, but he knows that the County will go broke if

revenue does not come into the County from more operations than just residential. He explained that this will

open the opportunity for industry to come into the County in a way that will still allow the Board to deny their

applications if the Commissioners see fit. Commissioner Johns stated that changing the LDRs to match the

ComprehensivePlan is better than the inverse. Chair Dobbs stated that he would like to see companies come into

the County and create a competitive wage market, which would allow the County's youth to stay and raise

families. The Board came to an agreement that the two documents need to match each other, and that their

content reflect the way of life in Union County.

Commissioner Johns moved to recommend that the Board of County Commissioners adopt Ordinance 25-03.

Commissioner Croft seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously.

Seeing no further business. Chair Dobbs adjourned the meeting by general consent at 5:05 P.M.

APPROVED: ATTEST:

Kellie Hendricks Rhoades, Clerk of CourtsChanning Dobbs, Chairman

Page 2 of 2



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

UNION COUNTY, FLORIDA

PUBLIC HEARING

JUNE 2, 2025

NOTE: If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing,

he or she will need a record of the proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim record is made.

Channing Dobbs, Chair

RECORDING: Reagan E. Robinson, Deputy Clerk

ATTENDING: Commissioner Mac Johns; Commissioner Donna Jackson; Commissioner Melissa McNeal;

Commissioner Willie Croft; James Williams, County Coordinator; Russell A. Wade 111, County

Attorney; Pamela Woodington, Finance Director

PRESIDING:

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER

Chairman Dobbs called the meeting to order at 5:05 P.M.

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

Commissioner McNeal moved to adopt the agenda. Commissioner Jackson seconded the motion, and it passed

unanimously.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Chair Dobbs called for public comments. Hearing no requests to speak. Chair Dobbs closed the floor to public

comments.

CONSIDERATION OF AN APPLICATION BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS. TO AMEND THE TEXT OF

THE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS (LDR) BY AMENDING SECTION 4.15. 1. ENTITLED "ILW" INDUSTRIAL.

LIGHT AND WAREHOUSING. DISTRICTS AND INTENT AND SECTION 4.16.1. ENTITLED INDUSTRIAL. DISTRICTS

AND INTENT TO DELETE THE LOCATION REQUIREMENT THAT SUCH DISTRICTS BE LOCATED WITHIN A

DESIGNATED URBAN DEVELOPMENT AREA AND ORDINANCE NO. 2025-03

Attorney Wade read Ordinance 25-03.

PUBLIC COMMENTS IN FAVOR OF;

Chair Dobbs called for public comments. There were no public comments in favor of Ordinance 25-02.

PUBLIC COMMENTS OPPOSED TO:

There were no public comments opposed to Ordinance 25-02.

ACTION BY THE BOARD

Commissioner Johns moved to amend the text of the LDRs and adopt Ordinance 25-03. Commissioner Croft

seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously.

Seeing no further business. Chair Dobbs adjourned the meeting by general consent at 5:09 P.M.

ATTEST:APPROVED:

Kellie Hendricks Rhoades, Clerk of CourtsChanning Dobbs, Chairman

Page 1 of 1



RESOLUTION 2025-06

A RESOLUTION MODIFYING THE PLAT OF NEW RIVER ESTATES, VACATING AND ANNULING THE

EXSITING PLAT OF LOTS 6 AND 7; COMBINING SAID LOTS INTO A SINGLE LOT DESIGNATED "COMBINED

LOT 6-7'

WHEREAS, PURSUANT TO §177.101, Florida Statutes, the Board of County Commissioners of Union

County is authorized by resolution to vacate and annul so much of the first plat of lands appearing of

record as are included in a subsequent plat of such lands; and

WHEREAS, the owner and grantee of Lots 6 and 7 of New River Estates, a recorded subdivision in Plat

Book 2, Page 18, of the Public Records of Union County, Florida, has duly made application to the Board

for the combination of said lots, in accordance with the allowance prescribed under said plat and the

covenants, conditions, and restrictions governing said subdivision; and

WHEREAS, the City of Worthington Springs, in which the subdivision lies, has no objection to the

combination of the lots; and

WHEREAS, no easement prevents the lot combination; and

WHEREAS, it appears to the Board that the filing and recording of the second plat would not materially

affect the right of convenient access to lots previously conveyed under the first plat;

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Union County, Florida:

The existing plat of lots 6 and 7 of New River Estates is hereby vacated and annulled.1.

Lot 6 and 7 are re-platted and combined into a single lot, designated “Combined Lot 6-2.

7.

The Circuit Court Clerk of the County shall thereupon make proper notation of the3.

annulment of such original plat upon the face of such annulled plat, and replat of such lots into a single

combined lot designated "Combined Lot 6-7,” making reference to this resolution.



PASSED AND ADOPTED in regular session by the Board of County Commissioners of Union County,

,, 2025.Florida, on the of

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

UNION COUNTY, FLORIDA

By:

CHANNING DOBBS, Chair

Attest:

KELLIE HENDRICKS RHOADES, Clerk

[SEAL]



TaskForce U

June 4, 2025

Mr. James Williams

Union County Coordinator
15 NE 1st Street

Lake Butler, FL 32054

E. countvcoord@unioncountv-fl.gov (via email only)

Dear Mr. Williams,

Fm reaching out on behalf of the North Central Florida Homeless Continuum of Care (CoC), the State

and Federally designated Lead Agency serving Alachua, Bradford, Gilchrist, Levy, and Putnam Counties.

Effective July 1,2025, the State of Florida Department of Children and Families has assigned Union

County to our CoC catchment area. We are committed to fostering collaboration among Union County

stakeholders to effectively prevent and reduce homelessness in our community. To support this effort,
$ 150,000.00 in service funding has been allocated by our CoC for Union County residents in the
upcoming fiscal year.

The CoC Board (Leadership Council) plays a pivotal role in guiding these efforts, comprising
representatives from various sectors, including city and county governments, nonprofit organizations,

faith-based groups, businesses, public housing agencies, educational institutions, and more. Each member
brings invaluable insights and expertise that guide our community’s strategy and actions.

In accordance with Section 3(a)(i)(2) of the local CoC Charter, the Union County Board of County

Commissioners, or its designee, may appoint one member to serve on the CoC Leadership Council. We
kindly request that Union County appoint a representative to fill this seat at their earliest convenience and
send back the completed draft appointment letter included in the email with this letter.

The CoC Leadership Council currently holds a regular meeting on the first Thursday of each month at

3:30pm via Microsoft Teams.

Should you require additional information about the responsibilities and commitments associated with
serving on the CoC Leadership Council, or if you have any other questions, please do not hesitate to
contact me directly.

Thank you for your attention to this matter. We look forward to the continued partnership and
collaboration with Union County in our shared mission to improve the quality of life for all residents.

Sincerely,

Keanna Johnson

CoC Director

E. keanna.johnson@keystohome.org

KEYS TO HOME
R V ! ! E ■ ’ R



Union County

Public Library

ZSO SB Avenwe Lake Butler, FL 3ZOS4

Phone 386-496-3432.

V'

Library Director Report - May 2025

May I - Renee concluded her final story time program for the season.

May 5 — 1 attended the UC Department Head meeting.

May 6 & 27 - The Senior Social Club welcomed a special guest from the Florida Forest Service—Smokey Bear made a

memorable appearance. Tricia Wyle, Director of New River Public Library Cooperative, gave a presentation on the

services and resources available to the tri-county libraries.

May 9 - The Lake Butler Middle School ESE class visited the library, where they enjoyed games and engaging activities

such as a scavenger hunt and bingo.

May 12 - Renee participated in the annual S'"** Grade Campout - the kids played BINGO.

May 13 - Sadie guided an engaging adult program where participants crafted unique button bouquets.

May 14 - I participated in the Senior Awards ceremony to present JFOL scholarships to four graduating seniors.

May 16 — Renee visited all LBES students to tell them about the library’s exciting summer events!

May 19-1 attended the UC Department Head meeting and the regular UCBCC board meeting.

May 21-1 attended the library director meeting (Union, Bradford, Baker libraries).

May 24-26 — The library was closed for the Memorial Day holiday weekend.

www.UnionCountuPuhdcLihrary.ora



UC PUBLIC LIBRARY

May-25

FY25

ATTENDANCE 1913

REGISTRATION 8259

E-BOOKS

CIRCULATION

643

2701

COMPUTER USE 408

REFERENCE 1003

NUMBER OF MATERIALS 40,967

DAYS OPEN 25

PROGRAMS

CHILD ON-SITE 1/26

CHILD OFF-SITE 1/200

AFTER SCHOOL

YA ON-SITE 1/19

YA OFF-SITE 1/200

ADULT OFF-SITE

2/25ADULT ON-SITE

VOLUNTEER HOURS 9.5

AVE. ATTEND PER DAY 77

AVE. CIRC PER DAY 134



DEPARTMENT OF

EMERGENCY SERVICES
P. O. BOX 266

LAKE BUTLER, FL 32054

PHONE (386)496-3839

FAX (386) 496-2158

BRENT ALLEN

DIRECTOR

Total Call Report for May 2025

Total 911 Calls: 233

Total Transports: 149
Total Non-Transports:
Total DOC Calls: 26

Total LBH Calls: 24

Average Calls Per Day:

84

7

Total Times UCEMS Requested Mutual Aid: 6
Total Times UCEMS was Requested for Mutual Aid: 4

Total Fire Call Report for May 2025

Traffic Crash - 5

Misc Fire - 1

General Illness - 2

Fire Alarm - 3

Lift Assist - 1

Injuries - 1
Vehicle Fire — 1

Mobile Home Fire - 1

Hit & Run - 1



UF/IFAS EXTENSION & UNION COUNTY

WORKING TOGETHER

JUNE 2025 Commisioner’s Report

Sap TestingIST'SSJSS^

A decision-making tool for efficient
fertiliser application

X’. 14tVI .

The agent helped three Union farm
families comply with FDACS Best
Management Practices for water and
fertilizer use by providing soil moisture
sensors and petiole sap testing on their
strawberry and watermelon crops.

The use of the combined technologies
gives the farmer the ability to save
money by using only the amount of
water and fertilizer needed to produce a
crop.

Shown to the right: sap testing in action
and crops need changing rates of water
and fertilizer as they grow.

May Highlights

● The St. Jude Swine Showdown featured 750 swine resulting in a lot of youth development and a $10,000 donation to St.

Jude Children's Hospital.

● The Ag Agent continued to work with three farmers focusing on fine tuning irrigation and fertilization applications in

strawberry and watermelon. Additionally the agent assisted clients with addressing fruit tree culture, pond health, and

weed suppression.

● The Ag/Extension auditorium was used on 5 occasions in May: St. Jude Swine Showdown, a UCLA Board meeting, Project

Grad, Florida Lawns and Beekeepers classes.

AG/HORT4-H*MAY 2025 CONTACTS SECRETARY ADMIN TOTALS Event Calendar

office Visits 71 5 76

Union County Beekeepers, Union County
Extension 6/17 7 PM

Union County Beekeepers. Union County
Extension 7/15 7 PM

See back page to review schedule of
June and July summer day camps. They
filled up in record time this year!

Phone/Texts 29 32 8 69

TEmails 10 49 17 76

Field & Farm Consultations (20) 40 40

Educational Program 18 18

Social Media Post Reach 791 791

TOTAL no 935 25 1,070

Educational Works Created 1 1

Education Programs Held 2 2

Meetings Attended 3 2 5

* 4-H data will be reported in July issue.

IIU IFAS Extension
UNlVERStTYo/FUMUOA

UNION

Equal Opportunity Institutions



I nr IFAS Extension
UNIVERSITY 0/FLORIOA

SUMMER
2025

UCATIONAL CLINICS
June 17-19

Junior Homesteaders

June 10-12June 4

Paws and Claws Critter Clinic

Join us for Paws and Claws

^ Clinic, where youth will
j meet special animal guests,

● I ^^^explore a variety of animals, and
learn about farm animals and

showmanship at the Extension
Office.

Ages S'*- $20

Young Entrepreneur

Participants will learn about Youth will explore agriculture and
food preservation by learning to

live off the land and make ^marketing, business plans,

and other components

needed to successfully run a

business. Then, they will

create a business plan and

marketing tools.
Ages ll«-$50

homemade items like jam and ●
bread. They’ll visit Dudley Farm

State Park, a historic farmstead in

Newberry, to seetraditidoal^
homesteading in action'

Ages 8'^ $50

■IB July 7-9
■ Suwannee Splash: ■
I From Swamp to Sea H
B Youth will explore the H
I Suwannee River's journey I

from its source in the

Okefenokee Swamp to where

I it meets the Gulf of Mexico.
I Along the way, they'lUearn
I about water conservation,
^ visit springs and coastal
communities, and hear from

A environmental experts. M

Ages 8-*^ $50

June 26

^^B USA Day
I Celebrate America at USA I
■ Day! Youth will visit the d
I Union County Courthouse |
and Camp Blanding Museum

||A to learn about local dH
IB government, military
history, and what it means to

bean active citizen.

■ Participants will explore ■

patriotism and the ^B
^B importance of civic ^B
^^■1 responsibility.

Ages S* $20 ^^^B

June 24

Creative Cfovers^B
Let your creativity bloom at
our Creative Clovers Clinic!

Participants will dive into 1
hands-on activities like ■

_ jewelry making, floral B
design, guided painting, and

rP more. Each projectencourages imagination, 1
self-expression, and artistic

|B fun in a supportive, M|
I inspiring environment. ■

Ages 5+ $30

June 25

Relaxation Doy^H
Back by popular demand, 1

. this relaxing day was a hit |
with our 4'Hers. Youth will

unwind and recharge while

p exploring fun ways to M
I manage stress, including 1
P light exercise, planting ^
flowers, foot soaks, hand

scrubs, a movie, and more

calming activities.

Ages $20

i

^ y > y #


	06132025_UNION.pdf
	BOCC Financials.pdf

